




TO: Lee Johnson February 28, 1980 

FROM: Bob Oliver 

SUBJECT: Governor's Fund 

Fred Heard and Grattan Kerans, Democratic majority leaders of the 
respective legislative Houses, have asked the Attorney General four 
questions relating to the "Governor's Fund" established to defray 
certain expenses incurred by the Governor, Mrs. Atiyeh and the 
Governor's staff. Their concern is that it violates ORS 244.040, 
which prohibits a public official from receiving, directly or in­
directly, during any calendar year, gifts with an aggregate value 
in excess of $100 "from any single source who could reasonably be 
known to have a legislative or administrative interest in any 
governmental agency in which the official has any official position 
or over which the official exercises any authority." Since the 
Governor is the chief officer of the executive branch of state 
government, it is difficult to call to mind many individuals or 
entities in Oregon who do not have some kind of legislative or 
administrative interest in an agency over which the Governor exer­
cises authority. The primary question, then, involves the definition 
Of II gift o II 

ORS 244.020(5) defines 11 gift" as "something of economic value given 
to a public official . . without valuable consideration . • which 
is not extended to others who are not public officials." The term 
"gift" is further defined to exclude campaign contributions, gifts 
from relatives and "the giving or receiving of food, lodging and 
travel when participating in an event which bears a relationship 
to the public official's office and when appearing in an official 
capacity." The third exclusion, however, must be reported when such 
expenses exceed $50. 

When the Governor (or a member of his staff) incurs lodging and 
travel expenses in attendance at a Republican party function, or 
other activity covered by the fund and not qualifying for state 
reimbursement but relevent to his business and deductible under 
federal and state income tax regulations, ordinarily he would pay 
the expense out of his own pock~t. The purpose of this fund is to 
reimburse him directly for such expenses. In such case, of course, 
he either would not claim it as a deduction on his federal tax 
return, or would report as income the amount of reimbursement from 
the fund. 

It is my view that if the Governor (or a member of his staff) in­
curred expenses in an activity which was purely personal -- such as 
a vacation -- and were reimbursed from the fund, then such reimburse­
ment would constitute a "gift" under ORS 244.020. The fact that 
contributions from various individual entities are commingled in a 
common fund would not, in my view, insulate the recipient from the 
donors in terms of the donors' legislative or administrative interests. 
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At the same time, if the Governor (or a member of his staff) is 
participating in a legitimate business activity, deductible under 
tax regulations, and not strictly personal in nature, reimburse­
ment from the funds simply "washes out" an expenditure made by 
the Governor (or a member of his staff) . So long as a deduction 
is not taken -- or the reimbursement is reported as taxable 
income -- the economic situation of the recipient has not been 
bettered. 

There is a paucity of case law interpreting ORS chapter 244 
(Government Ethics), particularly the definitions under ORS 244.020 
and the application of 244.040. Common sense, however, tells me 
that if I attend some function by virtue of my position as a member 
of the Governor's staff, and not as a private individual, reimburse­
ment of my expenses --whether by the state or someone else -- isn't 
a "gift," so long as I come out even, and so long as I make appro­
priate reports and/or deductions under state and federal income tax 
laws. 




